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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of 
Sozo Global Limited (“SOZO”) and its Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 (“FYE 2011”).

Business Environment
Industry studies have shown that the ready-to-serve (“RTS”) foods industry and export revenue from Shandong Province 
are expected to achieve a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 13.0% and 12.3% respectively from 
2009 to 2015. The Group expects that as consumers become more affluent, demand for high quality convenient food 
products, in particular, RTS food products will increase over time.

The Group wish to leverage on Malaysia’s reputation as a global Halal food hub and credible Halal certification. We 
will use Malaysia as a platform to tap into the global Halal food market worth US$2.1 trillion per annum. With Halal 
products ready, we will penetrate into Indonesia & middle east markets with more than 700 million populations.

Business Review
The Group have achieved Robust Growth for the past 6 years. With strong cash flow business, cash flow at 31 December 
2011 stood at more than RMB500 million despite cash investment on expansion plan of RMB285 million in FYE 2011.

Besides, the Group have embarked on a series of new business development in FYE 2011 which should contribute to 
the revenue and profit growth in year 2012 including:
• Third food processing factory (Halal complied)
• Duck farming business (Upstream expansion)
• Development outside China (Tokyo, Singapore, Malaysia)

Financial Highlights
Our revenue increased by approximately RMB22.7 million or approximately 2.8% from RMB815.4 million in preceding 
year ended 31 December 2010 (“FYE 2010”) to approximately RMB838.1 million in FYE 2011 mainly due to increase in 
sale of other products (such as spring rolls) developed for indirect export to the European markets.

Furthermore, our Group recorded gross profit and profit after taxation of approximately RMB295.1 million and RMB217.8 
million respectively in FYE 2011, representing 8.9% and 8.4% growth as compare to FYE 2010.

Corporate Development
The Group had set up a marketing office in Tokyo on 08 September 2011. This marketing office will enhance the 
Group’s ability in taking care its existing core market in Japan and responsible to acquire new market.

Besides, Rizhao Hengbao Foodstuffs Co. Ltd. (“Rizhao Hengbao”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of SOZO, had on 16 
March 2012 received approval from the Agri-food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore, approving their ready-to-
reserve (“RTS”) food related products including “breaded pork in skewers, breaded pork, roasted pork meat product, 
smoked duck meat, black pepper smoked duck meat, roasted whole duck, roasted duck meat product, roasted 
chicken meat product” for sales and export to Singapore.

In line with the approval given, the Company had on 30 March 2012 incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in 
Singapore with the name “HB Food (S) Pte. Ltd.” for the purpose of importing RTS food from Rizhao Hengbao for sales 
in Singapore. 

Meanwhile, the Group is in the midst of setting up a new wholly-owned subsidiary in Malaysia. This subsidiary will be 
responsible to set up Halal operation in Malaysia.

Dividend
The Board of Directors recommended a First and Final tax exempted dividend of RM3.8 sen per ordinary share in 
respect of FYE 2011. This dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Future Prospects
The operating environment in the coming year remains challenging. With the kick start of duck farming operation, 
the Group is expecting higher operational and fixed cost. In order to meet the challenges facing ahead, enhancing 
operational efficiency, innovative invention and stringent cost control remain the primary focus of the Group to 
maintain bottom line profit margin. We believe that with our effort, the future remains favourable.

Acknowledgement and Appreciation
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers 
and business associates for their continuous trust and supports in our Group.

Last but not least, I like to thank the Board members for their guidance, Management and staff for their dedication, 
loyalty and commitment to the Group in the past.
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集团首席执行员年度发表词

我谨代表董事局成员，提交索卓集团2011年12月31日的年报及经审计财务报表.

营商环境
业界调查显示，调理食品业和山东省出口营收从2009年至2015年的复合年增长率将各自达到13.0%和12.3%。我们相
信消费者将提升成更富裕的阶层，并且寻求更高品质的方便食品，尤其对调理食品的要求会增长更多。

集团将借助马来西亚身为全球清真食品枢纽及其高信赖度的清真认证，寻求其成为进军全球市值2.1兆美元清真食品
市场的平台。携着清真产品，我们将进军印尼及中东超过7亿人口的市场。

业务回顾
在过去的六年里，集团业务取得强劲增长。随着健全的现金流，尽管集团投入多达人民币2亿8千5百万的现金投资于
扩充设施，2011年12月31日的现金仍超过人民币5亿。

除此之外，集团于2011年展开了一系列的新业务发展，这将贡献营收及利润于集团2012年的业绩：
•第三厂（符合清真认证）
•养鸭厂（向供应链上流发展）
•中国以外的发展（东京，新加玻，马来西亚）

财务亮点
集团的营收从2010年12月31日的人民币8亿1千540万增加了人民币2千270万或2.8%至2011年的人民币8亿3千810万。
增加主要是因为提高了其它产品（春卷）的欧洲销量。

此外，集团取得毛利人民币2亿9千510万和净利人民币2亿1千780万，各自达到8.9%及8.4%相交于2010年的增长。

企业发展
集团已于2011年9月8日于东京设立营销办事处。此营销办事处将提升集团服务现有顾客的能力，及负责开拓新市
场。

此外，索卓集团的全资子公司，日照恒宝食品于2012年3月16日取得新加玻农业食品部的批准，准予出口及销售调理
食品相关产品到新加玻如：沾面包屑猪肉串，沾面包屑猪肉产品，烤猪肉产品，熏鸭肉，黑胡椒熏鸭肉，烤全鸭，
烤鸭肉产品，烤鸡肉产品。

随着取得批准，集团已于2012年3月30日成立了一家全资子公司，名”HB Food (S) Pte. Ltd.”以从日照恒宝食品进口调
理食品到新加玻销售。

与此同时，集团正凑备成立一家马来西亚全资子公司。这家子公司将负责设立马来西亚的清真业务。

股息
董事局建议派发免税股息马币3.8仙于每一普通股。这股息需获得股东大会的批准。

未来展望
来年的经营环境充满挑战。随着养鸭业务投入操作，集团将面对更高的生产及固定成本。为了迎接这严峻的挑战，
集团将专注于提高生产效率，创新发明及严厉的成本调控，以达到保持集团利润的目标。我们相信伴随着我们努力
不懈的工作，未来将充满无限希望。

鸣谢与感激
我谨代表董事局成员，借此机会感谢所有的股东，顾客，供应商和生意伙伴对集团的持续信任及支持。最后，我在
此感谢董事局成员的循导，管理层和员工一直以来对集团的贡献，忠诚及热情的投入精神。
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Sozo Global
Limited

100%

HB Food (s) Pte. Ltd.

100%

Rizhao Hengbao 

SOZO currently does not have any associate company. Incorporated on 30 March 2012. It is a dormant company 
as at to date.

Sozo Global
Limited

100%

HB Food (s) Pte. Ltd.

100%

Rizhao Hengbao 

SOZO currently does not have any associate company. Incorporated on 30 March 2012. It is a dormant company 
as at to date.

A diagrammatic representation of the organisation of the SOZO Group is shown below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Shen Hengbao (申恒宝)

Shen Hengbao, a national of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), aged 50, was appointed as our Chief 
Executive Officer on 12 October 2009. He is a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He 
is the founder of our Group and has more than 25 years of experience in the PRC Food and Beverage 
(“F&B”) industry and export business. He has been spearheading the expansion and growth of our Group 
since the commencement of our Group’s business in 2005. 

He graduated from Linyi Agricultural Academy in 1982 and obtained a Masters in Business Administration 
from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998. He also obtained a Masters 
in Business Administration from the California American University in 2001. 

He started his career with Ju County Foreign Trade Company (莒县外贸公司) in 1982 as the head of 
department of livestock obstetrics. He joined Ju County Foreign Trade Canned Food Factory (莒县外贸罐头
厂) as the factory manager in 1990 where he was put in-charge of the day-to-day management. In 1998, 
he joined Shandong Foodstuffs Import and Export Company (山东食品进出口公司), a provincial level state-
owned enterprise based in Qingdao as its deputy general manager in-charge of overseeing and assisting 
in the management of several state-owned companies in Shandong Province which were engaged in the 
manufacturing of foodstuffs for export markets, in particular, to Japan. 

In 2005, he left Shandong Foodstuffs and founded Rizhao Hengbao together with Meng Xiangzhen and 
several other individuals. With the sales network and contacts he had accumulated in the course of his 
career (in particular those with major Japanese F&B companies), he successfully grew Rizhao Hengbao 
into a well established F&B export company over a short time span. 

Meng Xiangzhen (孟祥贞)

Meng Xiangzhen, a national of PRC, aged 45, was appointed as our Executive Director on 12 October 
2009. She graduated with a degree in accounting from the Shandong Economics Academy (山东经济学
院) in 1986.

She co-founded the Group with Shen Hengbao and has more than 20 years of experience in the PRC 
F&B industry and export business. She started her career as an accountant with Ju County Foreign Frozen 
Foodstuffs Factory in 1986. In 1989, she joined Ju County Shanfu Foodstuffs Co., Ltd. (莒县山孚食品有限公
司) as the head of the accounts department. In 1998, she joined Shandong Foodstuffs Import and Export 
Company (山东食品进出口公司) as the head of the company’s accounts department. In 1999, she re-
joined Shanfu Foodstuffs as its deputy general manager where she established an invaluable network of 
contacts in the F&B industry, and gained valuable experience in managing F&B operations.

As our Executive Director, her main responsibilities include overseeing the day-to-day operations of Rizhao 
Hengbao.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (cont’d)

Lee Yu Lian

Lee Yu Lian, a Malaysian, aged 42, was appointed as our Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on 15 
September 2009. She holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree, LLB from the University of London.

She is currently the Managing Partner of Vida Partners, a private equity fund management firm that 
manages funds for institutions and corporations. In addition to her duties as Managing Partner of Vida 
Partners, Ms Lee is also actively involved in investment, fund raising and fund management activities.

Prior to joining Vida Partners in 2007, she was the Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director of a local 
private equity and venture capital company. She was one of the pioneers when she joined them in 1997 
as an Investment Analyst. Prior to that, she was involved in corporate and commercial lending in two local 
banks. She had also served as a Director in a host of boards of private and public investee companies.

Tan Gim Hwee

Tan Gim Hwee, a Singaporean, aged 45, was appointed as our Independent Non-Executive Director on 12 
October 2009. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and is also a member of the 
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is a Certified Public Accountant in Singapore and a member 
of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore, a fellow member of the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants in United Kingdom and a member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.

He has more than 9 years of accounting and audit experience with professional accounting firms such 
as Ernst & Young and KPMG where he was responsible for a portfolio of audit clients ranging from listed 
companies to multinational companies and privately-held companies. In addition, he has more than 6 
years of management experience in operations, finance and accounting with commercial organisations. 
He was a Chief Financial Officer of a company listed in Singapore for almost 5 years since 2006 where he 
left in April 2011, and has been a Chief Financial Officer of another company subsequently. Currently, he 
is a management consultant providing business advisory services.

Sun Shimin (孙世民) 

Professor Sun Shimin, a national of PRC, aged 50, was appointed as our Independent Non-Executive 
Director on 12 October 2009. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He 
obtained a Master in Engineering Project Management in 1996 from the College of Mechanical and 
Electronic Engineering of Shandong Agricultural University and subsequently in 2003, obtained a Doctorate 
in Economics and Management from China Agricultural University.

He has more than 25 years of lecturing and research experience in the agricultural field. He started his 
career in 1980 as an agricultural mechanisation and automation research assistant at the College of 
Mechanical and Electronic Engineering of Shandong Agricultural University and was a Researcher 
specialising in agricultural mechanisation from 1984 to 1996.

From 1996 to 2003, he was an assistant lecturer at the College of Economics and Management of China 
Agricultural University. He is currently a lecturer at the College of Economics and Management of China 
Agricultural University.
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Ching Leng Team

Ching Leng Team, a Malaysian, aged 45, was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director on 14 
July 2010. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He 
is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants and an Associate of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia.

He started his career in accountancy in 1991 as an accounts assistant in a local trading company. In 1995, 
he joined a local accounting firm as an audit assistant where he worked for 6 years at his last position as 
a branch manager before he left in early 2001. Subsequently, in 2001, he joined KPMG Tax Services Sdn 
Bhd, Johor Bahru as a senior tax consultant. In 2002, he established his own audit firm and is currently the 
managing proprietor of LT Ching & Associates (AF 1447).

Poh Seng Hiap

Poh Seng Hiap, a Malaysian, aged 45, was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director on 
14 July 2010. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit 
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is a Chartered Accountant by profession 
and holds a Bachelor of Business (Accountancy) degree and a Master of Finance from the RMIT University 
in Melbourne, Australia. He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

He has more than 17 years of experience in the accounting and finance field where he was involved in 
strategic planning and operations in various industries. In the course of his career, he has thus far held 
various positions such as an accountant in an oil palm company and vice president of finance in an 
Indonesian-based company involved in the distribution of pharmaceutical products, and a head of 
finance in a Singapore-based property development company.

Note :

None of the Directors has any family relationship with any director and / or major shareholder of the 
company nor any conflict of interest with the company and none of the Directors has committed any 
offences within the past ten (10) years other than traffic offences, if any.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (cont’d)
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As part of the Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility efforts towards its employees, the community and 
the environment where its businesses are conducted, the following activities are in place:-

ENVIRONMENTAL CARE

The Group strictly complies with the environmental guidelines set by provincial and municipal governments 
for the discharge of pollutants. The Group has also obtained the Emission Permit issued by Environmental 
Protection Bureau of Ju County, PRC.

EMPLOYEE WELFARE

Efforts are in place for the provision of a conducive working environment for the workers and personnel, 
who are the driving force behind our growth and operational success.

The Group focuses on improving the quality and living standards of its employees and will continue 
monitoring the same, working towards the provision of providing our employees with a good and healthy 
environment under our care in the coming years.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH AT THE WORK SITE

It is crucial to maintain high occupational safety and health standards for all employees and others at 
the work place. The Group is committed to improving its health and safety performance and conducting 
business in a socially responsible manner from time to time.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) affirms its overall responsibility in ensuring that good corporate 
governance practises are in place throughout the Group in order to protect and enhance shareholders’ 
interests and the performance of the Group. The Board endeavours to fully comply with the Malaysian 
Code on Corporate Governance (the “Code”) and to adopt the Best Practices as recommended by the 
Code to the best interest of the shareholders of the Group. The Board also fully subscribes and supports 
the relevant provisions in the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) (“Listing Requirements”).

A. DIRECTORS

The Board

The Group is led and controlled by an effective Board. The Board provides strategic directions for the 
Group and regularly meets to review corporate strategies, resolve operational affairs and monitor financial 
performance of the Group.

Board Balance

The Board currently comprises seven (7) directors of whom two (2) are Executive Directors, one (1) is a 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and four (4) are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby 
meeting the minimum one-third (1/3) requirement for independent directors to be appointed to the Board 
as required under the Listing Requirements. The profile of each of the Directors is available at pages 7 to 9 
of this Annual Report. The combination of professionals with diverse and varied backgrounds and wealth 
of experience and expertise in finance and corporate affairs also enables the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities effectively and efficiently.

There is a clear segregation of duties between the Chief Executive Office of the Company (the “CEO”) 
and the Executive Director to ensure that there is always a balance of power and authority. Essentially, the 
CEO has the obligation to preside at various meetings, namely the shareholders’ general meetings and 
the Board and Audit Committee meetings in order to address issues to be highlighted by and to members 
independently and separately, the Executive Director has the responsibility to manage the day-to-day 
business operations of the Group by ensuring that strategies, policies and matters approved by the Board 
and other committees are implemented diligently.

There is also a balance in the Board with the presence of the Independent Non-Executive Director of 
the necessary calibre and experience to make informed decisions at Board meetings. Although all the 
Directors have equal responsibility for the Group’s operations, the Independent Non-Executive Directors 
are particularly important in safeguarding the interests of the Group, the shareholders, the employees and 
the communities in which the Group conducts its business by rendering independent views and advice.

Duties and Responsibilities 

The Board takes full responsibility for the performance of the Group. The Board guides the Company on its 
short and long-term goals, provides advice and directions on management and business development 
issues while providing balance to the management of the Company. 

The Board assumes the following responsibilities :-

• Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Group; 
 
• Overseeing the conduct of the Group’s business to evaluate whether the business is being properly 

managed; 
 
• Identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage 

these risks; 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

• Succession planning, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of and where 
appropriate, replacing senior management; 

 
• Developing and implementing an investor relations program or shareholder communications 

policy for the Group; and 
 
• Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems and management 

information systems, including system for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
directives and guidelines. 

Directors’ Training

All the Directors have undergone the Mandatory Accreditation Program (“MAP”) prescribed by 
Bursa Securities.  The Directors remain committed to undergoing further continuing education training 
programmes to upgrade and enhance their knowledge and to keep abreast with the constantly changing 
environment in the business and corporate sectors. 

Training programmes attended by the Directors in year 2011 are as follows :-

1.  Shen Hengbao (申恒宝) 
Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(Mandarin) 29th. of June 2011 

  
2.  Sun Shimin (孙世民) 

Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(Mandarin) 29th. of June 2011

  
3.  Lee Yu Lian   

Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(English) 20th. & 21st. April 2011 

  
4.  Tan Gim Hwee  

Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(English)23rd. & 24th. March 2011

  
5.  Ching Leng Team  

Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(English) 23rd. & 24th. March 2011

  
6.  Poh Seng Hiap  

Bursatra’s Mandatory Accreditation programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies (MAP)
(English)23rd. & 24th. March 2011

  

Due to her busy schedule, Meng Xiangzhen was unable to undergo any formal training programme in FYE 
2011. She will endeavour to do so in 2012.

Supply of information

The Company Secretary or a representative from the Company Secretary’s office will attend all Board 
meetings and Committee meetings and is responsible for the proper maintenance of records of the Board 
and Committee meetings and records of discussions on key deliberations and decisions taken.

All Directors have access to all information within the Group. In addition, the Company Secretary renders 
necessary assistance to the Board and ensures meeting procedures are followed and the applicable laws 
and regulations are complied with.
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Under the direction of the CEO, the Company Secretary’s responsibilities include ensuring good information 
flows within the Board and its Committees and between senior management and Non-Executive Directors, 
as well as facilitating orientation and assisting with professional development as required.

Where necessary, the Directors may engage independent professionals at the Group’s expense on 
specialised issues to enable the Directors to discharge their duties with adequate knowledge on the 
matters deliberated.

Board Committees

The Board has established the following Committees to assist them in the discharge of their duties. The 
Committees operate under approved terms of references or guidelines.

• Audit Committee 

The terms of the Audit Committee and its activities during the financial year are outlined under the 
Audit Committee Report in pages 19 to 22 of this Annual Report.

• Remuneration Committee 

The Remuneration Committee meets when required and is entrusted, among others, with 
examining the remuneration packages and other benefits of the Executive Directors. The 
contribution, responsibilities and performance of each Executive Director is taken into account 
when determining their respective remuneration packages.

However, the ultimate responsibility to approve the remuneration of these Directors remains with 
the Board as a whole. The Executive Directors is not involved in any decisions with regard to their 
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is composed mainly of Non-Executive Directors as follows:-

Poh Seng Hiap – Chairman
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Shen Hengbao – Member
(Chief Executive Officer)
Ching Leng Team – Member
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

• Nomination Committee 

The role of the Nomination Committee is to recommend the candidates who have an optimal 
mix of qualifications, skills and experiences, including core competencies to the Board. The 
Nomination Committee is required to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board, each Committee of 
the Company and also to assess the contribution of each Director in relation to the effectiveness 
of the Board’s decision-making process on an annual basis.

The Nomination Committee may, as it deems fit, call for any appropriate person(s) to be in 
attendance to make presentations or furnish or provide independent advice to the Nomination 
Committee on any matters within the scope of responsibilities.

The Nomination Committee is composed exclusively of the following Independent Non-Executive 
Directors: -

Sun Shimin – Chairman 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tan Gim Hwee – Member 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Poh Seng Hiap – Member 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Appointment to the Board

Prior to the appointment of a Director, the Nomination Committee will recommend the candidate’s 
appointment to the Board by submitting the nomination for the Board’s deliberation and approval. In 
assessing each candidate, the Nomination Committee will take into consideration the candidate’s skills-
sets expertise, experience and potential contributions as a potential director.

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire by 
rotation from office at every Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and they shall be eligible for re-election 
at such AGMs. The Directors to retire shall be the Directors who have been serving in office for the longest 
duration since their appointment or last re-election. All Directors are subject to retire from office at least 
once in every three years. Any Director appointed during the year is required to retire and seek re-election 
by shareholders at the first AGM following his appointment.  

Board Meetings

Board Meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional meetings convened for particular matters, 
when necessary to deliberate and approve the financial results of the Group, corporate plans, acquisition 
and disposal of assets, investment proposals and other pertinent issues. The notices of the meetings are 
circulated to the Board at least two (2) days before the meeting.

The proceedings and resolutions concluded at each Board Meeting are recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings, which are kept in the Minutes Book at the Company’s registered office in Singapore.

Apart from the proceedings at Board Meetings, the Board exercises control on matters that require the 
Board’s approval through circulation of Directors’ resolutions as well.

The Board has held five (5) meetings for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and the summary of 
attendance at the Board meetings is as follows:-

Name of Directors Attendance Percentage of Attendance

Shen Hengbao (申恒宝)  5/5 100%
Meng Xiangzhen (孟祥贞)  3/5 60%
Lee Yu Lian  4/5 80%
Tan Gim Hwee  5/5 100%
Sun Shimin (孙世民)  1/5 20%
Ching Leng Team  5/5 100%
Poh Seng Hiap 5/5 100%

B.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out below :-

(a) Aggregate remuneration of Director categorised into appropriate components.

  Salary & 
 Fee *Other Emoluments Total
 RMB(’000) RMB(’000) RMB(’000)

Executive Director 203 1,160 1,363
Non-Executive Director 675 - 675

*Other emoluments include bonus and the Company’s contribution to Employer Provident Fund.
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(b) The remuneration paid to Directors during the year, analysed into bands of RM50,000, which is in 
compliance with the disclosure requirements under Listing Requirements are as follows :-

 
Range of Remuneration  Number of Directors Number of Directors   
  Executive Non-Executive

Up to RM50,000  - 2
           RM50,001 – RM100,000 - 3
           RM100,001 – RM150,000 - -
          RM150,001 – RM200,000 2 -
           RM200,001 – RM250,000 - -

The remuneration of an Executive Director is linked to corporate and individual performance. The 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is related to their experiences and level of responsibilities and is 
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

C.  SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue between Company and Investors

The Board recognises the importance of keeping the shareholders informed and updated of development 
concerning the Group. In this regard, the Group strictly adheres to the disclosure requirements of Bursa 
Securities and the Malaysian Accounting Board. The Group practices open communication with its 
investors.

In its efforts to promote effective communication, the Board recognises that timely and equal dissemination 
of consistent and accurate information are provided to them through public announcements made 
throughout the year to Bursa Securities. The shareholders and members of the public are also invited to 
access the Group’s website at www.sozoglobal.com.my for the latest information on the Group.

The Company’s Annual Report, circulars and financial results are dispatched on annually basis to the 
shareholders to provide an overview of the Group’s business activities and performances. The Share 
Registrar is available to attend to administrative matters relating to shareholder interests.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with the shareholders. The shareholders will be given sufficient 
notice of the holding of the AGM through the Annual Report that is sent to them. At the AGM, the Board 
will present to the shareholders with a comprehensive report on the progress and performance of the 
Group and the shareholders are encouraged to participate in the questions and answers session thereat, 
where they will be given the opportunity to raise questions or seek more information during the AGM.

D.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

In preparing the annual financial statements and quarterly announcement of results to shareholders, the 
Board has always strived to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s position 
and prospects to the shareholders.

In the preparation of the annual financial statements and quarterly announcement of results, the Directors 
would have taken the necessary steps to ensure that the Group had used all the applicable accounting 
policies consistently and that these are supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee in the overseeing of the Group’s financial reporting processes 
and the quality of its financial reporting.

Internal Control

The Board affirms the importance of sound internal control and risk management practices to safeguard 
shareholders’ investments, customers’ interest and the Group’s assets. In order to improve internal controls 
within the Group, the Board has appointed an established independent professional firm to carry out the 
internal audit function for the Group.

The information on the Group’s internal control is further elaborated in pages 17 to 18 on the Internal 
Control Statement of this Annual Report.

Relationship with the External Auditors

The Board has appropriately established a formal and transparent relationship with the Group’s external 
auditors. The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the external auditors can be found in the Audit 
Committee Report as set out in pages 19 to 22 of this Annual Report. Annual appointment or re-appointment 
of the external auditor is via shareholders’ resolution at the AGM on the recommendation of the Board. 

E. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements prepared for each financial year 
to give a true and accurate view of the state of the Group and the Company of the results and cash flows 
of the Group and the Company for the financial year then ended. 

In ensuring the preparation of these financial statements, the Directors have:

• Overseen the overall conduct of the Company’s business and that of the Group;
• Identifyied principal risks and ensuring that an appropriate system of internal control exists to 

manage these risks;
• Reviewied the adequacy and integrity of Internal Controls System and Management Information 

System in the Company and within the Group;
• Adopted suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
• Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
• Ensured compliance with application approved accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting and other records which are closed 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and ensuring that the financial 
statements comply with the Listing Requirements, applicable approved accounting standards and other 
legal requirements.  
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INTERNAL CONTROL STATEMENT 

Introduction

The Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) requires listed companies to maintain a 
sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board 
has complied with the Best Practices set out in the Code and the Listing Requirements. This statement on 
Internal Control is made in compliance with Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Listing Requirements.

Board Responsibility

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to maintain a sound system of internal control and risk 
management and to review its adequacy and integrity on an ongoing basis.

It should be noted, however, that the system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate 
the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives. In pursuing these objectives, this system can 
only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management 

The Board recognises the need for effective risk management and to maintain a sound system of internal 
control. Risk management is an integral part of the business operations and this process goes through 
a review process by the Board. Discussions have been conducted during the year involving different 
levels of managements to identify and address risks faced by the Group. These risks were summarised 
and included in the Group’s risk management report. The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group throughout the financial year under 
review by the management. This is to ensure that all high risks are adequately addressed at various levels 
within the Group.

System of Internal Control

The Board is committed to maintaining a sound internal control structure to govern the manner in which 
the Group and its employees conduct themselves. The key elements of controls are:-

(i) the responsibilities of the Board and the management are clearly defined in the organisational 
structure to ensure the effective discharge of the roles and responsibilities of the parties in overseeing 
the conduct of the Group’s business;

(ii) the formation of operational policies and procedures by the management with a view to 
establishing group wide operational standards in order for all operating units to work cohesively 
towards achieving the business objectives of the Group. For accounting systems and financial 
processes, efforts are being taken to ensure consistency in the Group as a whole;

(iii) frequent on-site visits to the operating units by senior management so as to acquire a first-hand 
view on various operational matters and to address the issues accordingly;

(iv) the Board gathers and reviews key financial and operating statistics from time to time and 
constantly keeps track and monitor the achievement of the Group’s performance;

(v) a detailed budgeting process where operating units prepare budgets for the coming year;

(vi) regular visits by the internal auditor which will provide added independent assurance on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control and advising the management on the areas 
requiring further improvement;
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INTERNAL CONTROL STATEMENT (cont’d) 

(vii) the Audit Committee reviews on a quarterly basis of the quarterly unaudited financial results to 
monitor the Group’s progress towards achieving the Group’s business objectives. Authority is given 
to the Audit Committee members to investigate and report on any areas of improvement for the 
betterment of the Group; and

(viii) regular interactive meetings between the external and internal auditors to identify and rectify any 
weakness in the system of internal controls. The Board would be informed of any matters brought 
up in the Audit Committee meetings on a timely basis.

Board Conclusion

The external auditors have reviewed this Internal Control Statement for the inclusion in the annual report 
of the Company and of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and reported to 
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the statement is 
inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and 
integrity of the system of internal controls.

The Board believes that the systems of internal controls in the Group are adequate and have been 
effective in their functions, with no significant problems noted during the period under review. Moving 
forward, the Group will continue to improve and enhance the existing systems of internal controls, taking 
into consideration the changing business environment.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 16 May 2012.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 15.09 of the Listing Requirements, the Audit Committee comprises three (3) 
directors, who are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Chairman
Tan Gim Hwee – Chairman 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Members
Ching Leng Team – Member
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Poh Seng Hiap – Member 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

1. Membership

(i) The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board.

(ii) It shall comprise at least three (3) members of who must be Non-Executive Directors, with a majority 
of them being Independent Directors.

(iii) The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Audit Committee amongst the 
members of the Audit Committee themselves and shall be an Independent Director.

(iv) If the number of members is reduced to below three (3) as a result of resignation or death of a 
member, or for any other reason(s), the Audit Committee shall, within three (3) months of that 
event, appoint amongst such other directors, anew member to make up the minimum number 
required herein.

(v) At least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:- 

(a) must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or

(b) if he/she is not a member of the MIA, he/she must have at least three (3) years working 
experience and :- 

• he/she must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the 
Accountants Act 1967; or

• he/she must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of 
the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967.

(c) must possess such qualifications as may from time to time be prescribed by the Bursa Securities.

(vi) An alternate director is not eligible for membership in the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

2. Authority

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its Terms of Reference. 
The Audit Committee shall have unlimited access to both the internal auditors and external auditors as well 
as all employees of the Group. The Audit Committee shall also have the authority to obtain independent 
legal or other professional advice and to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and 
expertise if it considers this necessary.

3. Duties and Responsibilities

(i) To review with the internal auditor their audit plans, the reports and the system of internal control.

(ii) To review the adequacy of scope, functions and resources of the internal audit functions and that 
it has the necessary authority to carry out its work.

(iii) To review the internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme, 
processes or investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the 
recommendations of the internal audit function.

(iv) To review the assistance and cooperation given by the Company’s management to the external 
auditor and internal auditor.

(v) To review the plans of the external auditor of the Company, and their reports arising from the audit.

(vi) To review the cost effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the external auditor.

(vii) To review the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditor.

(viii)To review the quarterly unaudited condensed financial statements and the year end financial 
statements of the Group before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:-

• any changes in accounting policies and practices;

• any significant and unusual results or events; and

• compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

(ix) To review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within 
the Group including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of 
management integrity.

(x) To review with the external auditor their audit report, management letter and Management’s 
response.

(xi) To recommend to the Board the appointment or reappointment of the external auditor and 
internal auditor, audit fee, and where applicable, their resignation and dismissal.

(xii) To undertake such other responsibilities as may be agreed to by the Committee and the Board of 
Directors.

4. MEETINGS

(i) The Audit Committee shall hold at least five (5) meetings a year and such additional meeting(s) as 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall decide in order to fulfill its duties.
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(ii) Apart from the members of the Audit Committee who will be present at the meetings, the Audit 
Committee may invite any member of the Board of Directors, the Management, staff and 
representatives of the external auditor and internal auditor to be present at the meeting of the 
Audit Committee.

(iii) A quorum shall consist of two (2) members. The majority of members present must be Independent 
Non-Executive Directors.

(iv) Notices of not less than two (2) working days shall be given for the calling of any meeting to 
members.

(v) Matters raised and tabled at all meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of the members.

(vi) A resolution in writing, signed by all the members shall be as valid and effective as if it had been 
deliberated and decided upon at a meeting of the Audit Committee.

(vii) Proceedings of all meetings held and resolutions passed as referred to in clause above shall be 
recorded by the Company Secretary and kept at the Group’s registered office.

(viii) Every member of the Board shall have the right at any time to inspect the minutes of all meetings 
held and resolutions passed by the Audit Committee and the reports submitted thereat.

(ix) The external auditors shall have the right to attend and be heard at any meeting and shall attend 
before the Audit Committee when so required by the Audit Committee.

(x) Upon the request of the external auditors, the Chairman shall convene a meeting to consider any 
matters that the external auditors recommend should be brought to the attention of the Directors 
or shareholders of the Company.

(xi) The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors at least twice in a financial year without 
presence of the executive board members of the Group.

DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE

Five (5) Audit Committee meetings have been held for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and 
the summary of attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings is as follows:-

Name of Audit Committee Members Attendance

Tan Gim Hwee – Chairman 4/5
Ching Leng Team – Member 5/5
Poh Seng Hiap – Member  5/5

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

The main activities that were undertaken by the Audit Committee in the preceding year include the 
following: -

(i) Review the quarterly unaudited financial results of the Group and the annual audited financial 
statements prior to the Board of Directors’ approval and subsequence announcement;

(ii) Review the Corporate Governance Statement, Audit Committee Report and Statement of Internal 
Control of the Group for the purpose of inclusion in the Annual Report;

(iii) Review the auditor’ reports and any management letter issued by the auditor and the management 
response;

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

(iv) There is no review related party transactions related party transactions noted except as disclosed 
in Notes 26 of the Notes to the Financial statement;

(v) Met five (5) times with the external auditor, without the presence of the Company’s management; 
and

(vi) The AC recommends to the Board the re-appointment of Paul Wan & Co as the external auditor of 
the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee had successfully recommended to the Board of Directors for the internal audit 
function to be outsourced to ensure that the internal control systems within the Group are adequate and 
functioning as intended. With the internal audit function being put in place, remedial action can be taken 
in relation to weaknesses identified and noted in the systems and controls of the respective operating 
units. The setting up of the internal audit function is geared towards increasing efficiency and better 
management of resources in all aspects of the Group’s operations. The costs incurred for the internal audit 
function in respect of the financial year is approximately SGD37,920.

The Audit Committee regularly convenes meetings to deliberate on the findings and recommendations 
for improvement by the Group internal auditors, external auditors as well as regulatory authorities. The 
Audit Committee reviews the actions taken to rectify the findings in a timely manner, and to evaluate the 
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal control systems. 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE 

The information set out below is disclosed in accordance with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities :-

1. UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS
The gross proceeds of the Public Issues amounting to RM44,304,000 have been utilised for the following 
purposes:-

   Proposed  Utilised
   Amount  Amount
Description RM’000 RM’000

a) Setting up of a modern poultry farming and breeding facility 5,000 5,000
b)  Setting up of a modern poultry processing facility 5,000 5,000
c)  Setting up of a third production plant and corporate headquarters building in PRC 15,000 15,000
d) Construction of Halal food processing facility in Malaysia 5,000 -
e) Working capital 4,304 4,304
f)  Listing expenses 10,000 10,000

     Total  44,304 39,304

2.  SHARE BUY-BACKS
During the financial year, there was no share buy-back exercise carried out by the Company.

3.  DEPOSITORY RECEIPT PROGRAMMES
During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor any depository receipt programmes.

4.  IMPOSITION OF SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiary, Directors or 
management by the relevant regulatory bodies.

5.  NON-AUDIT FEES
During the financial year, there the amount of non-audit fees paid by the Company to the external 
auditors, Paul Wan & Co amounted to SGD15,096 in respect of fees for Secondary Listing exercise in 
Singapore.

6.  VARIATION IN RESULTS
There was no significant variance between the results for the financial year and the unaudited results 
previosely announced on 28 February 2012.

7.  PROFIT GUARANTEES
During the financial year, there were no profit guarantees given by the Company and its subsidiary.

8.  MATERIAL CONTRACTS
During the financial year, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its 
subsidiary involving Directors’ and major shareholders’ interests.

9.  CONTRACTS RELATING TO LOANS
There were no material contracts relating to loans entered into by the Company involving Directors 
and major shareholders.

10.  OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES EXERCISED
There were no issuances of options, warrants or convertible securities during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the 
Group and the statement of financial position and the statement of changes in equity of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

1. DIRECTORS

 The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:

 Shen Hengbao
 Meng Xiangzhen 
 Lee Yu Lian  
 Sun Shimin 
 Tan Gim Hwee 
 Ching Leng Team 
 Poh Seng Hiap 

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES

 Neither at the end nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any 
arrangement whose object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

 According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end 
of the financial year had any interests in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related 
corporations except as follows:

          Holdings in which director is
      Holdings registered in the          deemed to have an
      name of director    interest
      At   At  At  At
      31.12.2011  01.01.2011   31.12.2011  01.01.2011

 The Company      
	 (Number	of	ordinary	shares)      
 Shen Hengbao  -   -  267,202,000 267,202,000
 Lee Yu Lian  -   -  48,805,540 48,805,540
       
 Ultimate Holding Company     
 Hengbao Foodstuffs Holding Limited      
 (Number	of	ordinary	shares)     
 Shen Hengbao  686   648  - -
 Meng Xiangzhen  149   149  - -

 Mr Shen Hengbao, by virtue of the provision of Section 7 of the Singapore Companies Act, is deemed to 
be interested in the whole of the issued share capital of the wholly-owned subsidiary, Rizhao Hengbao 
Foodstuffs Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

4. DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS

 Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a 
benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or 
with a firm of which he is a member or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest, 
except for salaries, bonus and other benefits as disclosed in the financial statements.

5. SHARE OPTIONS

(i) During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company or any corporation 
in the Group was granted.

(ii) During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company or any corporation in the Group 
issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares. 

(iii) At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or any corporation 
in the Group under option. 

6. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The members of the Audit Committee at the end of the financial year were as follows:

 Tan Gim Hwee - Chairman
 Ching Leng Team - Member
 Poh Seng Hiap - Member

 The audit committee carried out its function in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Singapore 
Companies Act, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing Requirements and the Code of 
Corporate Governance.

 The Audit Committee has held 5 meetings during the financial year.  The primarily duties and 
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) To meet and discuss with internal auditors and external auditors their scope of work, the result of 
their examination, and evaluation;

(ii) To review quarterly financial result announcement and annual financial statement; and

(iii) To review interested party transactions.

 The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its Terms of Reference. 
The Audit Committee has unlimited access to both internal auditors and external auditors as well as 
all employees of the Group. The Audit Committee shall also have the authority to obtain independent 
legal or other professional advice and to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and 
expertise if it considers this necessary.

 The Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Directors the nomination of Paul Wan & Co. for 
re-appointment as external auditors of the Group at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.
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7. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

 The independent auditor, Paul Wan & Co., a member firm of Morison International, has expressed its 
willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Shen Hengbao
Director

Meng Xiangzhen
Director

23 April 2012
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
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In the opinion of the directors,

(i) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial 
position and the statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 30 to 59 are 
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as 
at 31 December 2011 and of the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group 
and the changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able 
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Shen Hengbao
Director

Meng Xiangzhen
Director

23 April 2012

STATUTORY DECLARATION 

Pursuant to Paragraph 9.27 of the Main Market Listing Manual Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad

I, Mr Ho Pui Hold, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Sozo Global 
Limited., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 
30 to 59 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same 
to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declaration Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above mentioned 
at Malaysia on 

This day of 23 April 2012

Ho Pui Hold 

Before me      

Commissioner for Oath
 

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
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Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sozo Global Limited (the “Company”) and its 
subsidiary (the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to 59, which comprise the statements of financial position of 
the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2011, the statements of changes in equity of the Group 
and the Company, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement 
of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

Management’s	Responsibility	for	the	Financial	Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (the “Act”) and International Financial 
Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient 
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or 
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability 
of assets. 

Auditor’s	Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position 
and statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provision of the Act and International Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 and of the results, changes 
in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have 
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

    PAUL WAN & CO
    Partner in Charge – Wee Yeak Ing
    Public Accountants and
    Certified Public Accountants, Singapore
    A Member Firm of Morison International

SINGAPORE
23 April 2012
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           The Group
                          Note  2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

    
Revenue     4  838,076  815,494

Cost of sales      (522,221) (530,557)

Gross profit      315,855  284,937
    
Other operating income    5  1,769  1,298

Selling and distribution expenses      (2,051) (1,431)

General and administrative expenses     (18,615) (10,340)

Other operating expenses    6  (846) (2,949)

Finance costs    7  (1,057) (667)

Profit before tax      295,055  270,848

Income tax expense    8  (77,230) (69,924)

Profit after tax    9  217,825  200,924

Other comprehensive income, net of tax     -  -

Total comprehensive income for the year, attributable 
 to equity holders of the Company     217,825  200,924

Earnings per share - Basic (RMB cents)   10  46.54  59.49

Earnings per share - Dilute (RMB cents)   10  46.54  59.49

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

       The Group    The Company
     Note 2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
        
ASSETS        
Non-current assets        
Property, plant and equipment 12 51,604  55,356  -  -
Construction in progress 13 173,487  7,237  -  -
Investment in subsidiary  14 -  -  152,070  130,599
Intangible assets 15 130,815  13,848  -  -

Total non-current assets  355,906  76,441  152,070  130,599

Current assets        
Inventories   16 16,961  7,636  -  -
Trade and other receivables 17 90,547  67,933  45,909  23,641
Cash and cash equivalents 18 534,171  563,603  883  11,393

Total current assets  641,679  639,172  46,792  35,034

TOTAL ASSETS   997,585  715,613  198,862  165,633

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves        
Share capital  19 146,161  146,161  146,161  146,161
Reserves   20 84,327  61,273  -  -
Retained earnings  608,313  430,420  35,891  15,691

Total equity   838,801  637,854  182,052  161,852

Non-current liability        
Borrowings   21 15,134  14,436  -  -

Total non-current liability  15,134  14,436  -  -

        
Current liabilities        
Trade and other payables 22 103,751  43,978  3,756  3,781
Amount due to a shareholder 23 13,054  -  13,054  -
Borrowings   21 10,000  -  -  -
Income tax liabilities  16,845  19,345  -  -

Total current liabilities  143,650  63,323  16,810  3,781

TOTAL EQUITY AND
  LIABILITIES    997,585  715,613  198,862  165,633

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Group  

         Fair value      
      Share Statutory  adjustments Retained  Total
      capital reserves  reserves  earnings  equity
     Note RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
          
At 1 January 2010   152 32,252 8,237 250,280 290,921 
         
Issuance of new shares 
  pursuant to initial public offering  146,009 - - - 146,009

Total  comprehensive income for 
  the year    - - - 200,924 200,924

Transfer to reserves  - 20,784 - (20,784) -
          
          
At 31 December 2010   146,161 53,036 8,237 430,420 637,854

Dividends   24 - - - (16,878) (16,878)
          
Total  comprehensive income for 
  the year    - - - 217,825 217,825
          
Transfer to reserves  - 23,054 - (23,054) -
          
At 31 December 2011  146,161 76,090 8,237 608,313 838,801

The Company      
          
       (Accumulated
      Share losses)/retained Total
      capital earnings equity 
     Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2010    152 (2,997) (2,845)

Issuance of new shares pursuant to initial public 
  offering      146,009 - 146,009
      
Total comprehensive income for the year   - 18,688 18,688

At 31 December 2010    146,161 15,691 161,852

Dividends     24 - (16,878) (16,878)

Total comprehensive income for the year   - 37,078 37,078

At 31 December 2011    146,161 35,891 182,052

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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           The Group
                          Note  2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax      295,055  270,848
Adjustments for:    
 Depreciation      12 4,078  4,374
 Amortisation       2,719  326
 Allowance for impairment loss of property, plant and equipment   -  585
 Interest expense      1,057  667
 Interest income      (1,769) (1,287)

    
OPERATING PROFITS BEFORE WORKING 
 CAPITAL CHANGES      301,140  275,513

 In inventories       (9,325) (1,122)
 In trade and other receivables      (22,614) (20,459)
 In trade and other payables      7,073  10,710

Cash from operations       276,274  264,642
 Income tax paid      (79,730) (62,354)
 Interest received      1,769  1,287

Net cash generated from operating activities     198,313  203,575

    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment     (326) (1,945)
 Payment of construction in progress(1)      (113,550) (762)
 Purchase of intangible assets      (119,686) -

Net cash used in investing activities      (233,562) (2,707)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
 Proceeds from borrowings       10,000  -
 Proceeds from borrowings from shareholder     12,695  -
 Payment of dividend      (16,878) -
 Net proceeds from issue of new shares pursuant to initial public 
  offering       -  71,783

Net cash generated from financing activities     5,817  71,783

    
NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
 EQUIVALENTS       (29,432) 272,651

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
 BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR      563,603  290,952

    
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
 OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR     18 534,171  563,603

(1) During the financial year, the Group acquired construction in progress with an aggregate cost at RMB166,250,000 
(2010:RMB762,000) of which RMB52,700,000 (2010:Nil) remains unpaid at the end of the financial year.  Cash payment of 
RMB113,550,000 (2010: RMB762,000) were made to purchase construction in progress.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial 
statements.

1. GENERAL

 The Company was incorporated in Republic of Singapore on 12 June 2006 under the name of Sozo 
Energy Capital Pte Ltd and changed its name to Sozo Global Pte Ltd on 6 October 2006. On 27 October 
2009, the Company was converted into a public limited company and the consequential change of 
its name to “Sozo Global Limited”. The Company listed on Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad on 17 December 2010.

 The registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #17-02, Singapore 068898. 
The principal place of business of the Group is located at 1 Juzhou Road, Ju County, Rizhao City, 
Shandong Province, People’s Republic of China. The registered office of the Company in Malaysia is 
located at Suite10.03, level 10 The Garden South Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

 The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is Hengbao Foodstuffs Holding Limited, 
a company incorporated in British Virgin Island. 

 The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company’s 
subsidiary are those of manufacturing and producing various types of foods.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and the 
statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 were 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on the date of the Statement by 
Directors.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Preparation

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost convention except as 
disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provision of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) including related interpretations promulgated by 
the International Accounting Standard Board.

 The Group’s principal operations are conducted in the PRC and thus the financial statements are 
prepared in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), being the measurement and presentation currency of 
the Group. All values are rounded to the nearest thousands (“RMB’000”) except when otherwise 
indicated.

 In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised standards and 
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) that are relevant to its operations and 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2011.

 The adoption of these new and revised standards and interpretations did not result in substantial 
changes to the Group’s and Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the 
amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.

 The management does not anticipates that the adoption of those IFRSs (including consequential 
amendments) and interpretations that have been issued but not effective at the date of 
authorisation of these financial statements will have no material financial impact to the financial 
statements of current year and prior year.

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(b) Basis of Consolidation

 The financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiary made up to the end of the financial year. Detail information on its subsidiary is given in 
Note 13.

 The Group was formed as a result of the restructuring exercise undertaken on 25 September 2009 
for the purpose of the Company’s listing on the main market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad. The acquisition of 100% equity in the subsidiary, namely Rizhao Hengbao Foodstuffs Co., 
Ltd pursuant to the restructuring exercise under common control has been accounted for using 
the pooling-of-interest method. Under the pooling-of-interest method, the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group have been presented as if the Group structure immediately after the 
restructuring has been in existence since the earliest financial year presented. The assets and 
liabilities were brought into the consolidated statement of financial position at their existing carrying 
amounts. The pooling-of-interest method will continue to be used for the entities in existence up to 
the Group’s reorganisation exercise.

 All inter-company balances and significant inter-company transactions and resulting unrealized 
profits and losses are eliminated on consolidation and the consolidated financial statements reflect 
external transactions and balances only. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during 
the financial year are included or excluded from the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income from the effective date in which control is transferred to the Group or in which control 
ceases, respectively.

 Where accounting policies of a subsidiary do not conform with those of the Company, adjustments 
are made on consolidation when the amounts involved are considered significant to the Group.

(c) Financial Instruments

 Financial instruments carried on the statements of financial position include cash and cash 
equivalents, all receivables and payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are 
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. These instruments are 
recognised when contracted for.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s financial position when 
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. De-recognition of 
the financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the instruments expired or 
are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred. 
Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expired.

Financial	assets
 Financial assets which are under IAS 39, other than hedging instruments, are divided into the 

following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, 
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the 
different categories by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which 
the assets are acquired. The designation of financial assets is re-evaluated and classification may 
be changed at the reporting date with the exception that the designation of financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss is not recoverable.

 The Group does not have any financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to maturity 
investments or available-for-sale financial assets except for loans and receivables.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 (c) Financial Instruments (cont’d)

  Financial	assets	(cont’d)

(i) Trade and other receivables
 Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the profit or loss when there 
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.  The allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in bank.

Financial	liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings.

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest 
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for 
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(i) Trade and other payables
 Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

(ii)  Borrowings
 Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term 
of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

 The residual amount, after deducting the fair value of the liability component, is recognised 
and included in shareholder equity, net of transaction costs.

Equity
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined using the nominal value of 

shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are 
deducted from the proceeds to the extent that they are incidental costs directly attributable to 
the equity transaction.

(i) Equity instruments
 Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 

direct issue costs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 (c) Financial Instruments (cont’d)

 	 Derecognition	of	financial	assets
 The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

	 Derecognition	of	financial	liabilities
 The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or expired.

 (d) Income Tax

	 Current	tax
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period.  Taxable profit differs 
from profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of 
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items 
that are never taxable and deductible.  The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred	tax
 Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end 

of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax 
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax 
assets and the carrying amount of deferred tax assets.  The Company recognises a previously 
unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  The Company conversely reduces the 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of 
unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax 
losses can be utilised.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(e) Subsidiary

 A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entities that are controlled 
by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so 
as to obtain benefits from its activities accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the 
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. The results 
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the financial year are included or excluded from 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date in which control is 
transferred to the Group or in which control ceases, respectively.

 Investments in subsidiary is stated at cost less any allowance for impairment in value in the 
Company’s statement of financial position.

 For acquisition of subsidiaries under common control, the identifiable assets and liabilities were 
accounted for at their carrying values, in a manner similar to the pooling-of-interest method of 
consolidation.

 For acquisition of subsidiaries not under common control, the purchase method of accounting 
is adopted. The cost of such acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity 
instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the dates of exchange, plus costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially value on the date of the acquisition, 
irrespective of the extent of non-controlling interest.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.  The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditure for additions, 
improvements and renewals are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are 
charged to profit or loss. 

 When plant and equipment are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses are removed from the financial statements and any gain or loss 
resulting from their disposal is included in the profit or loss.

 Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost less residual value of property, 
plant and equipment less any estimated residual values, over the following estimated useful lives :-

 
                       Estimated useful lives
 Leasehold building and infrastructure      25 years
 Plant and machinery       10 years
 Furniture, fittings and equipment       5 years
 Motor vehicles       5 years

 The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset 
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

 The residual value, estimated useful lives and depreciation method on property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of each  reporting period.  The 
effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011



39

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(g) Construction in progress

 Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes the cost of construction, purchase cost 
of plant and machinery as well as interest expense arising from borrowings used to finance the 
construction during the construction period.

 Construction in progress for production plant and machinery is transferred to property, plant and 
equipment on the commissioning date. Plant and machinery are considered to be commissioned 
when they are capable of producing saleable quality output in commercial quantities on an 
ongoing basis.

(h) Intangible assets

 Intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model. Capitalised costs are amortised on 
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as they are considered finite. After initial 
recognition, they are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing.

 Intangible assets are written off where, in the opinion of the directors, no further future economic 
benefits are expected to arise.

Land	use	rights
 Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. 

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost of land use rights, using the straight-line method, 
over the period of the grant, which is the lease term.

(i) Impairment Loss

(i) Non-financial assets
 The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s 
recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if 
any). An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which 
it arises unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such impairment loss is 
charged to equity.

 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

 
(ii) Financial assets 
 The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance 

account which is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When 
the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries previously written off are recognised against the same line item in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(i) Impairment Loss (cont’d)

 (ii) Financial assets (cont’d)

 The allowance for impairment loss account is reduced through the profit or loss in a subsequent 
period when the amount of impairment loss decreases and the related decrease can be 
objectively measured.

(j) Inventories

  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (weighted average method) and net realisable value. 

 The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct 
costs, and related production overheads based on normal operating capacity, but exclude 
borrowing costs. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs 
to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

(k) Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at 
the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of 
the reporting period, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

(l) Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

(i)	 Functional	and	presentation	currency
 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of 

the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB.

(ii)	 Transactions	and	balances
 In preparing the financial statements of the Group, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 

currencies are translated into RMB at rates of exchange closely approximate to those ruling 
at the end of the reporting period and transactions in foreign currencies during the financial 
year are translated at rates ruling on transaction dates. Non-monetary items carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on 
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of 
monetary items are included in statement of comprehensive income for the period. Exchange 
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included 
in profit or loss for the year except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary 
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-
monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in 
equity.

(iii)	 Group	companies
 The results and financial position of the Group entities that have functional currencies different 

from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the 
closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 (l) Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation (cont’d)

	 	 (iii)	 Group	companies	(cont’d)

(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at 
average exchange rate; and

    All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

 (m) Employee Benefits

	 Retirement	benefit	costs
 Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government, 

the PRC subsidiary of the Group has participated in central pension schemes (“the Schemes”) 
operated by local municipal government whereby PRC subsidiary is required to contribute a 
certain percentage of the basic salaries of their employees to the Schemes to fund their retirement 
benefits. The local municipal governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations 
of all existing and future retired employees of the subsidiary of the Company. The only obligation of 
the PRC subsidiary with respect to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under 
the Schemes mentioned above. Contributions under the Schemes are charged to the profit or loss 
as incurred.

	 Retirement	benefit	costs
 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall 

due. 

	 Employee	leave	entitlement
 Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A 

provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

 (n) Revenue Recognition

	 Sale	of	goods
 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Group has delivered the products to the 

customer, the customer has accepted the products and the collectability of the related receivables 
is reasonably assured. It is recorded net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes.

	 Interest	income
 Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest method.

 (o) Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 (p) Operating Leases

 Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an 
operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 (q) Related parties

 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the 
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating 
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or 
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

 (r) Segment Reporting

 A operating segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities 
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating 
to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be 
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information 
is available.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management 
to exercise its judgements, make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies as described in Note 2, reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are as below: 

(a) Critical judgements in applying the accounting policies

 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies as described in Note 2, the management 
is of the opinion that there are no instances of application of judgements which are expected to 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
 The estimates for the useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and 

equipment is based on commercial and production factors which could change significantly 
as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe market 
conditions. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could 
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Therefore, future 
depreciation charges could be revised. A 5% difference in the expected useful lives of the 
property, plant and equipment would not result in a significant change to the Group’s net 
profit for the respective financial period.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont’d)

 (b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(ii) Uncertain tax positions
 The Group has exposure to income taxes in the PRC. Significant judgement is involved 

in determining the Group provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and 
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course 
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different 
from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax 
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4. REVENUE

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Sale of goods      838,076  815,494

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Interest income      1,769  1,287
  Others        -  11

           1,769  1,298

6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Foreign exchange losses      845  2,364
  Allowance of impairment loss of property, plant and equipment   -  585
  Others        1  -

           846  2,949
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7. FINANCE COSTS

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000
 
  Interest on fair value for borrowings      698  667
  Interest expense on borrowings      359  -
    
           1,057  667

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000
 
  Tax expense   
  Income tax expense      77,230  69,924

PRC tax
The PRC income tax is computed according to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The 
applicable income tax rate was 25% (2010: 25%). 

Singapore tax
No provision for Singapore profits tax made as the Group has no assessable profits subject to Singapore 
tax during the financial year.

 Reconciliation between tax income and profit before taxation at applicable tax rate is as follows:

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Profit before income tax      295,055  270,848
  
  Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%)     73,764  67,712
  Items not (taxable)/deductible for tax purposes     (4,285) 1,659
  Effect of different tax rate in Singapore     7,751  553
  
  Tax expense      77,230  69,924

 No provision for deferred taxation has been provided as the Group did not have any significant 
temporary differences which gave rise to a deferred tax asset or liability as at 31 December 2011.
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9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

 In addition to the charges and credits disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, this item includes the following charges:-

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

Amortisation charges      2,719  326
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   
- Leasehold buildings and infrastructure     2,054  1,985
- Plant and machinery      1,536  1,881
- Furniture, fittings and equipment      99  173
- Motor vehicles      389  335
Allowance for impairment loss on property, plant and 
  equipment      -  585
Directors’ remuneration      1,160  105
Directors’ fee      878  126
Rental expense on operating lease      22  53
Employee compensation (Note 11)      28,828  26,486
Inventory charged to cost of sales      520,196  528,972
Non-audit fees to auditors of the Company     74  -
Audit fees to auditors of the Company     468  255

10. EARINGS PER SHARE 

 The calculation of the basis and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders 
of the Company is calculated based on the following:

           The Group
            2011  2010

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 
  (RMB’000)      219,825  200,924

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (’000)   468,000  337,754

Earnings per share 
- Basic (RMB cents)     46.97 59.49

- Diluted (RMB cents)      46.97 59.49

Diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per share as the Company does not have 
potential dilutive shares.
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11. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

Staff cost (including directors)   
- Wages and salaries      27,582  25,294
- Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans   1,246  1,192
   
          28,828  26,486

12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 The Group

     Leasehold  
     buildings  Furniture,
     and Plant and fitting and Motor
     infrastructure machinery equipment vehicles Total
     RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
         

Cost/ valuation      
At 1 January 2010  48,304 15,483 901 524 65,212
Additions   - 487 2 1,456 1,945

At 31 December 2010  48,304 15,970 903 1,980 67,157
Additions   - 322 4 - 326
         
At 31 December 2011  48,304 16,292 907 1,980 67,483

  
Comprising: 
At 31 December 2010      
At cost    39,891 15,220 389 1,664 57,164
At valuation   8,413 750 514 316 9,993

      48,304 15,970 903 1,980 67,157

         
At 31 December 2011      
At cost    39,891 15,542 393 1,664 57,490
At valuation   8,413 750 514 316 9,993

      48,304 16,292 907 1,980 67,483

Accumulated
  Depreciation      
At 1 January 2010  2,327 3,765 545 205 6,842
Depreciation charge for 
  the year   1,985 1,881 173 335 4,374

At 31 December 2010  4,312 5,646 718 540 11,216
Depreciation charge for
  the year   2,054 1,536 99 389 4,078

At 31 December 2011  6,366 7,182 817 929 15,294
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12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

     Leasehold  
     buildings  Furniture,
     and Plant and fitting and Motor
     infrastructure machinery equipment vehicles Total
     RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
         

Accumulated 
  Impairment Loss      
At 1 January 2010   - - - - -
Impairment loss for the 
  year    - 585 - - 585

At 31 December 2010
and 31 December
2011    - 585 - - 585

Carrying Amount       
At 31 December 2011  41,938 8,525 90 1,051 51,604

At 31 December 2010  43,992 9,739 185 1,440 55,356

The above leasehold buildings are located at Ju County Huaixu Gonglu Dong Ce, Rizhao Lu Nan Ce  
(莒县淮徐公路东侧，日照路南侧) and Ju County Yanzhuang Town Jianhua Cun Zhu Di, Weifang Lu Bei 
Ce (莒县闫庄镇建华村驻地，潍坊路北侧).

13. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

Building under construction   
At 1 January      7,237  6,475
Additions        166,250  762

At 31 December      173,487  7,237

Building under construction represents the factory premises and dormitory building under construction, 
production plants, machinery and other equipment under installation are stated at cost. 
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 

           The Company
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost      152,070  130,599

The details of the subsidiary company are as follows:

      Country of 
      incorporation and Proportion of ownership
 Name of company Principal activities place of business interest/voting power held
         2011  2010
           %     %
        
  Rizhao Hengbao  Manufacturing and  People’s 
  Foodstuffs Co.,  producing various Republic of
  Ltd   types of foods China    100    100

 

The Company acquired the entire paid up capital of Rizhao Hengbao Foodstuffs Co., Ltd on 25 
September 2009 for purchase consideration of RMB41.6 million and was satisfied by cash payments. In 
year 2011, the subsidiary has increased its registered capital by RMB20 million to RMB160.8 million. As of 
31 December 2011, the Company has injected a total of RMB152.1 million as capital in cash.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 The Group       
        
        Land Use Computer
        Rights Software Total
        RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
         

At Cost     
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010   15,230 13 15,243
Additions     119,686 - 119,686

At 31 December 2011    134,916 13 134,929

Accumulated Amortisation     
At 1 January 2010    1,060 9 1,069
Additions     323 3 326

31 December 2010    1,383 12 1,395
Additions     2,718 1 2,719

At 31 December 2011    4,101 13 4,114

Carrying Amount
At 31 December 2011    130,815 - 130,815

At 31 December 2010    13,847 1 13,848
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

The above land use rights represent land of: 

a) 24,309.8 sq m located at Ju County Huaixu Gonglu Dong Ce, Rizhao Lu Nan Ce (莒县淮徐公路东

侧，日照路南侧), and amortised over lease period of 38 years from 2006.

b) 17,170.10 sq m located at Ju County Huaixu Gonglu Dong Ce, Rizhao Lu Nan Ce (莒县淮徐公路东

侧，日照路南侧) and amortised over lease period of 50 years from 2006; and

c) 64,427 sq m located at Ju County Yanzhuang Town Jianhua Cun Zhu Di, Weifang Lu Bei Ce (莒县闫

庄镇建华村驻地，潍坊路北侧), and amortised over lease period of 50 years from 2006.

d) 91,614 sq m located at Ju County Yanzhuang Town Village, DaZhangAnPo Village, Jianhua Village 
(莒县闫庄镇大长安坡村、建华村), and amortised over lease period of 50 years from 2011.

e) 162,267 sq m located at Ju County AnZhuan Town, ZhuDi North Avenue, Huang Road, West (莒县

安庄镇镇驻地以北道黄路以西), and amortised over lease period of 50 years from 2011.

f) 57,967 sq m located at Ju County QiShan Town, ShiQuanGuanZhuan Village (莒县碁山镇石泉官庄

村), and amortised over lease period of 50 years from 2011.

16. INVENTORIES

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

At Cost:   
 Raw materials      5,734  2,308
 Finished goods      11,227  5,328

          16,961  7,636
   

All the goods are stated at cost in the statement of financial position. No allowance for inventory 
obsolescence is considered necessary.

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Subsidairy       
 Dividend receivables  -  -  43,764  23,100
 Other receivables  -  -  2,136  541
       
 Outside parties       
 Trade receivables  90,485  65,690  -  -
 Deposits   9  2,243  9  -
 Prepayments  53  -  -  -

      90,547  67,933  45,909  23,641
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

 Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:-

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Chinese renminbi  87,426  65,977  45,900  23,641
 Ringgit Malaysia  9  -  9  -
 United States dollars  3,112  1,956  -  -

      90,547  67,933  45,909  23,641

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days and do not bear any effective interest rate.  All 
trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure. However, the Group does not identify specific 
concentrations of credit risk with regards to trade and other receivables, as the amounts recognised 
resemble a large number of receivables from various customers. No allowance for impairment has 
been considered necessary for financial year ended 31 December 2011. 

The amount due from a subsidiary company is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and 
repayable on demand.

The amount due is denominated in Chinese Renminbi.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following statements 
of financial position amounts:

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Cash in hand  6  20  -  -
 Cash at bank  534,165  563,583  883  11,393

      534,171  563,603  883  11,393

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:-

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Chinese renminbi  512,084  552,210  -  -
 Singapore dollars  22,015  358  811  358
 Malaysia ringgit  72  11,035  72  11,035

      534,171  563,603  883  11,393
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19. SHARE CAPITAL
 
              The Group and Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
               Number of ordinary shares  RMB’000  RMB’000

 At beginning and end of
     the year   468,000,000  468,000,000  146,161  146,161

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid.  There is no par value for these ordinary shares.
 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are 
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the 
Company’s residual assets.

20. RESERVES

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

 Fair value adjustments reserves      8,237  8,237
 Statutory reserves      76,090  53,036
   
          84,327  61,273

Fair value adjustments reserves
The above fair value adjustment reserves represent fair value adjustment on interest free loan from 
ex-shareholders of the subsidiary (Note 21).  The Group has accounted for the liability based on fair 
value through profit or loss.  Changes in the fair value of the borrowings at fair value through profit or 
loss have been included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

Statutory reserves
The Group follows the accounting principles and relevant financial regulations of the People’s 
Republic of China (“PRC GAAP”) in the preparation of the accounting records and statutory financial 
statements of the PRC subsidiary.

In accordance with the Foreign Enterprise Law applicable to the subsidiary in the People’s Republic 
of China (PRC), the subsidiary is required to make appropriation to a Statutory Reserve Fund (SRF). 
At least 10% of the statutory after tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC 
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until the cumulative total of the 
SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC 
authorities, the SRF may be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of 
the subsidiary. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to shareholders.
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21. BORROWINGS

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Borrowings (non-current)  15,134  14,436  -  -
 Borrowings (current)  10,000  -  -  -
 
      25,134  14,436  -  -

 Borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:-

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Chinese renminbi  25,134  14,436  -  -

Borrowings (non-current) 
On 25 September 2009, the subsidiary company has entered into loan agreement with Shen Hengbao, 
Meng Xiangzhen, Wu Fang, Yao Zhifang and Shi Geli (collectively referred to as the “Ex-shareholders”) 
amounting to RMB21.8 million. The loan is interest free. The tenure of the loan is 10 years and will be 
automatically renewed for another 10 years unless the Directors decide that the loan is no longer 
required.

Loans from Ex-shareholders are stated at fair value and determined from the cashflow analyses, 
discounted at market borrowing rates of 4.86% per annum.

Borrowings (current)
Short term loan of RMB 10 million is unsecured at nil interest rate and repayable within one year.

The above borrowings are denominated in Chinese renminbi.

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Outside parties       
 Trade payables  27,488  25,714  -  -
 Other payables  13,047  8,385  1,523  -
 Accruals   58,687  7,379  2,233  3,781
 Withholding tax payable  4,529  2,500  -  -

      103,751  43,978  3,756  3,781
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont’d)

 Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:-

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Chinese renminbi  101,043  42,377  1,049  2,180
 Malaysia ringgit  325  1,120  325  1,120
 Singapore dollars  2,383  481  2,382  481

      103,751  43,978  3,756  3,781

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing 
costs. The fair value of trade and other payables have not been disclosed as, due to short term duration, 
management considers the carrying amounts recognised in the statements of financial position to be 
reasonable approximation of their fair values.

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a shareholder bears an interest rate at 8% per annum and repayable on 31 
December 2012.  The amount is denominated in Singapore dollars.

24. DIVIDENDS

                   The Group and Company
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

 Ordinary dividends paid
 Final dividend relating to 2010 (RM1.8 cents or 
   equivalent to approximately RMB3.61 cents per share
   (one tier system))      16,878  - 
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25. COMMITMENTS

Capital	commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised in the 
financial statements are analysed as follows:

                             The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Construction for waste water
   treatment plant – to third party  1,263  1,263  -  -
       
 Construction of duck poultry and
   slaughter factory (a)  53,750  -  -  -
       
 Capital contribution  
   to subsidiary  -  -  8,730  10,201

Operating	lease	commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating lease is as follows:

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

 Not later than one year      -  22
 Later than one year and not later than five years     -  -

          -  22

 Rental expenses for the year      22  53

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions 
took place between the Group and related parties at terms agreed between the parties:

(a)	Sales	and	purchase	of	goods	and	services

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Loan from shareholder      12,695  -
  Interest paid/payable on loan from a 
    shareholder      359  -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

(b)	Key	management	personnel	compensation	(include	directors)

  Key management personnel compensation is analysed as follows:

           The Group
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  Key management’s salaries and other short-term 
    employee benefits      505  508
  Post employment benefits      29  26
  Directors’ fee    
    - Executive directors      203  36
    - Non-executive directors      675  90
  Directors’ remuneration      1,160  105

          2,572  765

27. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

(a) Business segments

 For management purposes, the Company is organised into business unit based on their products 
and has four reportable operating segments,

(i) Ready-to-serve food
(ii) Frozen vegetables
(iii) Canned food 
(iv) Others

 Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to/from the above 
reportable operating segments.

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of 
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

 Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

 Capital expenditures comprised of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets.
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27. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(a) Business segments (cont’d)

     Financial year ended 31 December 2011

      Ready-to-serve Frozen Canned
      Food  Vegetables Food Others Total
      RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
         
  Revenue  708,659 118,664 - 10,753 838,076
  
  Segment results  257,237 53,470 - 5,148 315,855
  Other gains       1,769 
  Unallocated costs      (21,512)
  Finance expenses      (1,057)

  Profit before income tax      295,055
  Income tax expense      (75,230)

  Profit for the year      219,825

  Other segment information:      
  Depreciation and amortisation       6,797
  Capital expenditures       286,262

(b) Business segments

     Financial year ended 31 December 2010
  
      Ready-to-serve Frozen Canned
      Food  Vegetables Food Others Total
      RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
         
  
  Revenue  665,700 135,892 160 13,742 815,494

  Segment results  225,649 52,189 53 7,046 284,937
  Other gains       1,298
  Unallocated costs      (14,720)
  Finance expenses      (667)

  Profit before income tax      270,848
  Income tax expense      (69,924)

  Profit for the year      200,924

  Other segment information:       
  Depreciation and amortisation       4,700
  Capital expenditures       2,707
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27. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(b) Business segments (cont’d)

  The Company’s revenue is based on where the customers are located.

            Revenue
            2011  2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

  China       764,487  755,311
  Japan       71,341  58,344
  Europe       1,787  1,723
  Others       461  116

          838,076  815,494

  All non-current assets are located in PRC.

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The management meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group 
exposure to market risk, including principally changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates. 
Generally, the Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. As the Group 
exposure to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not used any derivatives or other 
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for 
trading purposes.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s financial instruments mainly consisted of cash and cash 
equivalents, financial assets and financial liabilities.

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

The Group operates and sells its products in several countries other than PRC and transacts in foreign 
currencies. As a result, the Group is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates 
arising from normal trading transactions, primarily with respect to United States dollars except that the 
convertible loans are denominated in Singapore dollars and Malaysia ringgit. However, the Group 
does not use any financial derivatives such as foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency 
options or swaps for hedging purposes.

A 2% (2010: 5%) strengthening of the USD, SGD and RM, against the Chinese renminbi would have had 
the following impact on the net profit by the amounts shown below.

                    Increase/(Decrease)
            Profit after tax  Profit after tax
          31 Dec 2011  31 Dec 2010
          RMB’000  RMB’000

 Singapore dollars      132  (6)
 United States dollars      62  98
 Malaysia ringgit      (5) 496
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

 Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d)

A 2% (2010: 5%) weakening of the above currencies against the Chinese renminbi would have the 
equal but opposite effect on the Chinese renminbi of the amounts shown above.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas 
transactions.  Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of Group exposure 
to currency risk.

 Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial 
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposures to interest rate risk from the interest-bearing borrowings are minimal as the 
Group’s policy is to maintain the borrowings on a fixed rate basis. 

 Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables represent the Group maximum 
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has no other significant concentration 
of credit risk other than the one largest trade receivables which represents approximately 10% of the 
total trade receivables at the end of reporting period. No other financial assets carry a significant 
exposure to credit risk. 

The credit terms granted to customers are recommended by the Group are determined based on the 
credit worthiness, payment history, transaction volume, financial background, market reputation and 
the existing relationship that the Group has with the customers.

There is no impairment losses recognised in the relevant periods since all receivable are collected 
within the credit period granted and there is no trade receivables that are consider past due within 
the relevant period.

 Liquidity risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a 
financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring the availability of adequate funds to meet all its 
obligations in a timely and cost-effective manner.
 

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern and to maintain the Company at a net current asset position by 
means of funding and financial support from the directors, in order to support its business and maximise 
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may acquire further 
funding from the shareholders, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares.  No changes were 
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) The directors have proposed a final one-tier exempt dividend of RM3.8 cents per ordinary share 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011. These financial statements do not reflect this 
proposed dividend, which will be accounted for in the shareholder’s equity as an appropriation of 
retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2012. 

(b) On 30 March 2012, the Company incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in Singapore with its 
paid-up capital of S$10,000 or equivalent to approximately RM24,364.

31. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – BREAKDOWN OF RETAINED EARNINGS INTO REALISED AND UNREALISED

The breakdown of the accumulated losses of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 
2011 into realised losses and unrealised profit is presented in accordance with the directive issued by 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance 
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of 
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants. 

       The Group                  The Company
       2011  2010  2011  2010
      RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

 Total retained earning of
   the company and its subsidiary:       
   - Realised profit  608,184  430,848  35,762  16,119
   - Unrealised profit/(loss)  129  (428) 129  (428)
 
      608,313  430,420  35,891  15,691

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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GROUP PROPERTIES PORTFOLIO

The landed property of SOZO as at the date of this Annual Report is as follows:

(i)  Land

Our subsidiary, Rizhao Hengbao has obtained the State-owned Land Use Right Certificates for the 
following ten (10) parcels of land, the details of which are set out below:-

  State-owned Land     
  Use Right     Audited NBV
  Certificate No./  Tenure/  Land Area as at
 Land No./ Certificate Issuance  Expiry of Revaluation/ (Square 31.12.2011
No. Location Date Tenure Acquisition Metres) RMB’000
   
1. 1-3-1727-1/  Juguoyong (2006)  38 years/ 2006 6,406.00 718
 East of Weixu Road  No.576/ 03.09.2044
 South of Rizhao Road,  26.06.2006
 Ju County Shandong 
 Province, PRC (‘Land I’) 

2. 1-3-1727-2/ East of  Juguoyong (2006) 38 years/ 2006 17,093.80 1,916
 Weixu Road South of  No.577/ 25.08.2044
 Rizhao Road,  26.06.2006
 Ju County Shandong 
 Province, PRC (‘Land II’)  

3. 1-3-1727-3/ East of  Juguoyong (2006)  50 years/ 2006 17,170.10 2,645
 Weixu Road South of  No.740/ 02.07.2056
 Rizhao Road, Ju County  17.08.2006
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land III’)   

4. 1-31-2467/ Jianhua Village,  Juguoyong (2006) 50 years/ 2006 64,427.00 8,242
 Yanzhuang Town North of  No.2050/ 10.12.2056 
 Weifang Road, Ju County  22.12.2006
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land IV’)     

5. 2011-58/ Jianhua Village,  Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 27,187.45 14,015
 DaZhangAnPo No.618/ 06.06.2061
 Village, Yanzhuan Town,  10.06.2011
 Ju County Shandong 
 Province, PRC (‘Land V’)
   
6. 2011-5/Jianhua Village,  Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 64,427.00 32,694
 DaZhangAnPo Village,  No.518/ 18.01.2061
 Yanzhuan Town,  10.06.2011
 Ju County Shandong 
 Province, PRC (‘Land VI’)   

7. 2011-12/Huang Road,  Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 58,196.00 18,652
 ZhuDi North Avenue, West,  No.118/ 19.01.2061
 AnZhuan Town Ju County  16.05.2011
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land VII’)   
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GROUP PROPERTIES PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

  State-owned Land     
  Use Right     Audited NBV
  Certificate No./  Tenure/  Land Area as at
 Land No./ Certificate Issuance  Expiry of Revaluation/ (Square 31.12.2011
No. Location Date Tenure Acquisition Metres) RMB’000
   
8. 2011-10/Huang Road,  Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 68,814.00 22,055
 ZhuDi North Avenue, West,  No.178/ 19.01.2061
 AnZhuan Town Ju County  18.05.2011
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land VIII’)
   
9. 2011-2/Huang Road,  Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 35,257.00 11,300
 ZhuDi North Avenue, West,  No.511/ 19.01.2061
 AnZhuan Town Ju County  12.05.2011
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land IX’)
   
10. 2011-18/ Juguoyong (2011) 50 years/ 2011 57,967.00 18,578
 ShiQuanGuanZhuan Village, No.377/ 19.01.2061
 QiShan Town, Ju County  23.05.2011
 Shandong Province, 
 PRC (‘Land X’) 
  
 Grand Total    416,946.35 130,815

(ii) Production Plants      
       
Details of the first and second production plants held by our subsidiary, Rizhao Hengbao are set out below:-

       
    Certificate of      
    Real Estate Built-up     Audited NBV
    Ownership No./ Area Approximate  as at
  Description/ Certificate (Square Age Revalution/ 31.12.2011
No. Location Existing Use Issuance Date Metres) (Years) Acquisition RMB’000
      
1. First Production 
 Plant      
 No.1, Juzhou Road, 5 blocks of single- Ju Fang Quan 15,842.55 20 - 30 2007 6,316
 Ju Country Shandong storey factory Zheng Cheng    
 Province PRC building, a double- Qu Zi    
  storey factory cum No. 110503/    
  office building and  17.08.2006    
  a double-storey     
  office building/     
  Production plant,     
  warehouse and office     
       
2. Second Production      
 Plant      
 North of Weifang A single-storey Ju Fang Quan 12,224.63 4 2008 35,622
 Middle Road No.1, factory building Zheng Cheng    
 Ju Country Shandong and a five-storey  Qu Zi    
 Province PRC workers’ hostel/ No. 20092463/    
  Production plant, 16.10.2009    
  warehouse and     
  workers’ hostel     
       
 Grand Total      41,938
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS
AS AT 9 MAY 2012

DISTRIBUTION ACCORDING TO SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Size Holdings   No. Of Holders  %  No. Of Holdings  %

1-99     10 0.46 289 0.00
100-1,000    97 4.43 72,965 0.02 
1,001-10,000   985 45.02 6,517,900 1.39
10,001-100,000  918 41.96 31,878,000 6.81
100,001- 23,399,999 (*) 176 8.04 113,523,306 24.26
23,400,000 and above (**) 2 0.09 316,007,540 67.52

Total     2,188 100.00 468,000,540 100.00

Remark: * - Less than 5% of Issued Holdings
   ** - 5% and above of Issued Holdings

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNTS HOLDERS
(ACCORDING TO REGISTER OF DEPOSITORS AS AT 9 MAY 2012)

     Holdings
 Name    No.  %
1. CARTABAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD EXEMPT AN FOR BARCLAYS BANK PLC, 267,202,000 57.09
 SINGAPORE (WEALTH MGMT NR) FOR HENGBAO FOODSTUFFS HOLDING LIMITED  
2. AGRO TREASURES SDN. BHD. 48,805,540 10.43
3. CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 9,447,300 2.02
 CIMB FOR SIVA KUMAR A/L M JEYAPALAN (PB)  
4. ROSCREA INVESTMENTS LIMITED 6,450,099 1.38
5. CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 6,200,000 1.32
 CIMB BANK FOR SHAHIDAN BIN KASSIM (MP0174)  
6. SIGN CENTURY LIMITED 5,290,000 1.13
7. AMSEC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 3,430,000 0.73
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MAH QUEE YONG (MA GUIRONG)  
8. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 3,243,300 0.69
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM GIM LEONG  
9. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 3,143,000 0.67
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KOH KIN LIP  
10. CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 3,136,900 0.67
 EXEMPT AN FOR LIBRA INVEST BERHAD  
11. YONG KIM SIONG 3,061,000 0.65
12. P.G.DORAISAMY A/L P.GOPAL 3,033,500 0.65
13. STRATEGIC CAPITAL PARTNERS PTE. LTD. 1,728,436 0.37
14. SOON LI VOON 1,700,000 0.36
15. JOVENSON LIM ONG 1,507,375 0.32
16. LIM KWEE GEE 1,495,764 0.32
17. YEAT SIAW PING 1,490,000 0.32
18. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,448,000 0.31
 RHB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SDN BHD FOR YOONG KAH YIN (EPF)  
19. ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,419,000 0.30
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHD ANNAS BIN MD ISA (8079005)  
20. KUMPULAN WANG SIMPANAN GURU-GURU 1,400,000 0.30
21. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,250,900 0.27
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM GIM LEONG (E-KLC)  
22. RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,200,000 0.26
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR FONG SILING (CEB)  
23. LIEW KHEE CHONG 1,200,000 0.26
24. GEORGE TIONG SIY 1,076,075 0.23
25. CHIN CHIN SEONG 1,050,000 0.22
26. CLIFFORD CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1,028,000 0.22
27. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,000,000 0.21
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT - AMBANK (M) BERHAD FOR  
 MOHAMMAD FAIZAL BIN ABD JABBAR (SOZO)  
28. RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,000,000 0.21
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SU MING YAW  
29. MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 1,000,000 0.21
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ZAINUL AZMAN BIN ZAINUL AZIZ (MARGIN)  
30. KUMPULAN WANG SIMPANAN GURU-GURU 913,000 0.20
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS (cont’d)
AS AT 9 MAY 2012

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(ACCORDING TO THE COMPANY’S REGISTER OF SUBTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 9 May 2012)

      Direct   Indirect
        No. Of  Share  No. Of  Share
        Ordinary  Capital  Ordinary  Capital
Name        Shares  (%)  Shares  (%)

Cartaban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd Exempt An For
  Barclays Bank PLC, Singapore (Wealth MGMT NR)
  for Hengbao Foodstuffs Holding Limited 267,202,000  57.09  -  -

Shen Hengbao     -  -  (a) 267,202,000  57.09

Agro Treasures Sdn Bhd     48,805,540  10.43  -  -

Khazanah National Berhad     -  -  (b) 48,805,540  10.43

Vida Incorporated Sdn Bhd     -  -  (b) 48,805,540  10.43

a)		 Deemed	interested	by	virtue	of	his	interest	in	Hengbao	Foodstuffs	Holding	Limited	pursuant	to	Section	6A	of	the	Malaysian	
Companies	Act.

b)		 Deemed	interested	by	virtue	of	its	interest	in	Agro	Treasures	Sdn	Bhd	pursuant	to	Section	6A	of	the	Malaysian	Companies	
Act.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

      Direct   Indirect
        No. Of  Share  No. Of  Share
        Ordinary  Capital  Ordinary  Capital
Name       Shares  (%)  Shares  (%)

Shen Hengbao   -  -  (a) 267,202,000  57.09

Meng Xiangzhen   -  -  -  -

Lee Yu Lian    -  -  (b) 48,805,540  10.43

Tan Gim Hwee   -  - -  -

Sun Shimin     -  -  -  -

Ching Leng Team   -  -  -  -

Poh Seng Hiap   -  -  -  -

a)		 Deemed	interested	by	virtue	of	his	interest	in	Hengbao	Foodstuffs	Holding	Limited	pursuant	to	Section	6A	of	the	Malaysian	
Companies	Act.

b)		 Deemed	interested	by	virtue	of	her	indirect	interest	in	Agro	Treasures	Sdn	Bhd	and	Vida	Incorporated	Sdn	Bhd	pursuant	to	
Section	6A	of	the	Malaysian	Companies	Act.



64

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the 
Ballroom 3, 1st Floor, Sime Darby Convention Centre, 1A Jalan Bukit Kiara 1, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 
29 June 2012 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AGENDA

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and of the 
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 together with the 
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To approve a First and Final Tax Exempt Dividend of RM3.8 sen per share 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011. 

3. To re-elect the following Directors, who retire pursuant to Article 104 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association:-

 i)  Mr Tan Gim Hwee  

 ii)  Mdm Meng Xiangzhen   

4. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of SGD175,000 for the year 
ended 31 December 2011.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Paul Wan & Co. as Auditors and to authorise the 
Directors to fix their remuneration.

 
6. Authority to Directors to Allot and Issue Shares

 “THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act of 
Singapore, Cap. 50, and subject otherwise to the provisions of that Act 
and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Directors be and are 
hereby authorised to issue shares of the Company to such persons and on 
such terms and conditions and with such rights or restrictions as they may 
think fit to impose, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be 
issued does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company 
for the time being, and subject always to the approval of all the relevant 
regulatory bodies having been obtained for such allotment and issue, and 
that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next 
Annual General Meeting or the expiration of the period within which the 
next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be 
held, whichever is the earlier.”

 
7. Proposed Change of The Company’s Name From “Sozo Global Limited” To 

“HB Global Limited” (“Proposed Change of Company Name”)

 “THAT the name of the Company be changed from SOZO GLOBAL LIMITED 
to HB GLOBAL LIMITED with effect from the the date of issuance of the Notice 
of Incorporation Upon Change of Name by the Singapore Accounting and 
Corporate Regulatory Authority and that the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association of the Company be amended accordingly, wherever the 
name of the Company appears AND THAT the Directors and/or Company 
Secretary be and are hereby authorised to give effect to the Proposed 
Change of Company Name with full power to assent to any condition, 
modification, variation and/or amendments as may be required by the 
relevant authorities.”

(Ordinary Resolution 1)

(Ordinary Resolution 2)

(Ordinary Resolution 3)

(Ordinary Resolution 4)

(Ordinary Resolution 5)

(Ordinary Resolution 6)

(Ordinary Resolution 7)

(Special Resolution 1)
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8. Proposed Amendments To The Articles of Association (“Proposed 
Amendments”) 

 “THAT the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the 
Company as set out in Appendix I attached herewith be and are hereby 
approved and adopted. 

 THAT the Directors and Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to carry out all the necessary formalities in effecting the 
amendments as set out in Appendix I attached herewith. 

 AND THAT the Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to 
assent to any condition, modification, variation and / or amendments as 
may be required by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.”

9. To transact any other business of the Company for which due notice shall 
have been given.

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)

(Special Resolution 2)

By Order of the Board,

ONG BENG HONG (LLB (Hons) (390/1990)
Company Secretary

Kuala Lumpur 
7 June 2012

NOTES ON APPOINTMENT OF PROXY:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than 
two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member and / or a qualified 
legal practitioner, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.

2.   Where a member duly executes the form of proxy but does not name any proxy, such member shall be 
deemed to have appointed the Chairman of the meeting as his/their proxy, provided always that the rest 
of the proxy form, other than the particulars of the proxy have been duly completed by the member.

3. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the 
proportion of his holding to be represented by each proxy.

4. Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories 
Act, 1991) it may appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary 
shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

5. In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be under its Common Seal 
or under the hand of an officer or attorney, duly authorised.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office in Malaysia at Suite 
10.03, Level 10, The Gardens South Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur 
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

7. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend the Fifth Annual General 
Meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to issue a General 
Meeting Record of Depositors as at 25 June 2012. Only members whose name appears on the Record 
of Depositors as at 25 June 2012 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to 
attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS

1. Ordinary Resolution 7 : Authority to Directors to Allot and Issue Shares

 The Proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, is a Renewal of General Mandate to empower the 
Directors to issue and allot shares up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the 
Company for the time being for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest 
of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a General Meeting, will 
expire at the next Annual General Meeting.

 The General Mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, 
including but not limited to further placing of shares, for the purpose of funding future investment 
project(s) workings capital and/or acquisitions.

 As at the date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company have been issued pursuant to the General 
Mandate granted to the Directors at the Fourth Annual General Meeting held on 27 June 2011 and 
which will lapse at the conclusion of the Fifth Annual General Meeting.

2. Special Resolution 1 : Proposed Change of Company Name

 On 14 May 2012, the Company announced to Bursa Malaysia Securties Berhad that the Board had 
proposed to change the Company’s name from Sozo Global Limited to HB Global Limited. 

 The rationale for the Proposed Change of Company Name is to improve the corporate image of the 
Company and to more accurately reflect the background and culture of the Company. 

 The Proposed Change of Company Name, if approved by the shareholders, will be effective from 
the the date of issuance of the Notice of Incorporation Upon Change of Name by the Singapore 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company will be amended accordingly to reflect the change of name.

3. Special Resolution 2 : Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association 

 The Proposed Special Resolution 2 is in compliance with the recent changes to the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad governing the listed companies. 

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT AND PAYMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT a First and Final Tax Exempt Dividend of RM3.8 sen per share for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2011, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting, will be payable on 28 September 2012 to the shareholders whose names appear in the Record 
of Depositors of the Company at the close of business on 3 September 2012. 

A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:

(a) shares transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 3 September 2012 in 
respect of transfer; and

(b) shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum-entitlement basis according to the Rules 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Directors who are standing for re-election at the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company are:-

i) Mr Tan Gim Hwee                      (Ordinary Resolution 3)

ii) Mdm Meng Xiangzhen                                               (Ordinary Resolution 4)

The profile of the Directors standing for re-election for Resolutions 3 and 4 are shown on page 7 to 8 of the 
Annual Report 2011.

The details of the Directors’ attendance at Board Meetings are disclosed in the Corporate Governance 
Statement.

The Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Ballroom 3, 1st Floor, Sime Darby 
Convention Centre, 1A Jalan Bukit Kiara 1, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 29 June 2012 at 10.00 a.m.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
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Details of the Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association are as follows (for which differences are 
highlighted in bold below under the columns “Proposed Amendments”): 

  Article  Existing Provision   Proposed Amendments 
  No.

  2 Interpretation    Interpretation 
 WORD MEANING WORD MEANING
 
    Exempt  An authorised nominee
    Authorised  defined under the    
    Nominee Central Depositories   
     Act which is exempted   
     from compliance with  
     the provision of
     subsection 25A(1) of the
     Central Depositories Act

  
  89A Authorised Nominee   Exempt Authorised Nominee 
  

APPENDIX I – PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

Where a Member of the Company is an 
authorised nominee as defined under the 
Central Depositories Act, it may appoint 
at least one (1) proxy in respect of each 
Securities Account it holds with shares of the 
Company standing to the credit of the said 
Securities Account. 

Where a Member of the Company is an exempt 
authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares 
in the Company for multiple beneficial owners 
in one Securities Account (“omnibus account”), 
there is no limit to the number of proxies 
which the exempt authorised nominee may 
appoint in respect of each omnibus account it  
holds. 



PROXY FORM
I / We (Full	Name	in	Block	Letters)

NRIC No. / Passport No. / Company No. 

of 

being a member / members of SOZO GLOBAL LIMITED, hereby appoint 

NRIC No. / Passport No. / Company No. 

of 

or failing him / her,

of

NRIC No. / Passport No. / Company No. 

as my / our proxy to vote and act on my / our behalf at the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held at the Ballroom 3, 1st Floor, Sime Darby Convention Centre, 1A Jalan Bukit Kiara 1, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Friday,  
29 June 2012 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

The proportion of my/our* holding to be represented by my/our* proxies are as follows:-
First Proxy (1)    Second Proxy (2) 

My/our* proxy is to vote as indicated below :-

NO. RESOLUTIONS    FOR AGAINST
 Ordinary Resolutions 
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 

and Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors thereon. 
2. To approve the payment of a First and Final Tax Exempt Dividend of RM3.8 sen per share 

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011. 
3. To re-elect Mr Tan Gim Hwee as Director.
4. To re-elect Mdm Meng Xiangzhen as Director. 
5. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees.
6. To re-appoint Messrs. Paul Wan & Co. as Auditors of the Company.
7. As special business, to approve the ordinary resolution pursuant to Section 161 of the 

Companies Act of Singapore, Cap. 50.

 Special Resolution 
8. To approve the Proposed Change of Company Name.
9. To approve the Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association. 

Please indicate with “X” where appropriate against each resolution how you wish to cast your vote. In the absence of 
specific directions, the proxy may vote or abstain from voting in the resolutions as he / she may think fit.

Signature of Shareholder(s)
(If shareholder is a corporation, this part should be executed under seal)

Date : 

NOTES:
1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) 

proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member and / or a qualified legal practitioner, 
an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Company.

2.  Where a member duly executed the form of proxy but does not name any proxy, such member shall be deemed to 
have appointed the Chairman of the meeting as his/their proxy, provided always that the rest of the proxy form, other 
than the particulars of the proxy have been duly completed by the member.

3. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of 
his holding to be represented by each proxy.

4.  Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories Act, 1991), it 
may appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company 
standing to the credit of the said securities account.

5. In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be under its Common Seal or under the hand 
of an officer or attorney, duly authorised.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office in Malaysia at Suite 10.03, Level 10, The 
Gardens South Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time 
for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. 

7. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend the Fifth Annual General Meeting, the 
Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 
25 June 2012. Only members whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 25 June 2012 shall be entitled to 
attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.



Fold	here

Fold	here

Please affix
postage stamp

here

The Company Agent in Malaysia
SOZO GLOBAL LIMITED

Suite 10.03, Level 10, The Gardens South Tower
Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra

59200 Kuala Lumpur




